

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT SELECT BOARD REGULAR SESSION MINUTES JULY 13, 2022 – 5:00 P.M. VIRTUAL

SELECT BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: NEAL DUFFY, MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, DAVID GRISHMAN, KATIE PHELAN & PETER SPELLIOS

MEMBERS ABSENT: NONE

OTHER TOWN OFFICIALS PRESENT: SEAN FITZGERALD, TOWN ADMINISTRATOR, AMY SARRO, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

OTHER:

A. Public Comment: Liz Smith: 1) It is fair to compensate non-union employees because union employees have already been compensated using ARPA funds; 2) Questioned using the term "revenue replacement"; 3) Also Questioned these decisions being made in the absence of a broader discussion that has not yet taken place. She feels these uses should be part of a comprehensive package discussion.

B. New and Old Business:

1. FISCAL YEAR-END TRANSFERS: Ms. SARRO DISCUSSED THE GENERAL FUND YEAR-END TRANSFERS WHICH HAVE TO BE DONE BY JULY 15th. There was a discussion about the overtime transfer for Police & Fire. FY22 saw significant impacts due to the pandemic and staffing levels. The Fire Dept. is fully staffed, the Police Dept. has two openings and is in the process of hiring. Both Chiefs will review their budgets quarterly with Ms. Sarro. If it looks like they are going over budget, the Town Administrator and Finance Committee will be alerted. The Chiefs are confident they can work within their FY23 budgets.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO APPROVE THE GENERAL FUND FY2022 YEAR-END TRANSFERS AS PRESENTED: ALL IN FAVOR YES. ANY OPPOSED NO. MOTION PASSES.

THE PEG Enterprise Fund transfer of \$20,000 is to fund a new video/audio system for the High School Auditorium.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, SECONDED BY KATIE PHELAN, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO APPROVE THE PEG ENTERPRISE FY2022 YEAR-END TRANSFER OF \$20,000 AS PRESENTED: ALL IN FAVOR YES. ANY OPPOSED NO. MOTION PASSES.

2. UTILIZATION OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUNDS: THE FINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSED THIS PLAN AT THEIR MEETING MONDAY NIGHT BUT DID NOT HAVE TO VOTE ON IT, NOR DID THEY HAVE ANY QUESTIONS OR CONCERNS. MS. SARRO GAVE A PRESENTATION - THE TOWN HAS BEEN AWARDED \$4.5 MILLION WHICH CAN BE USED FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES, INCLUDING REVENUE ENHANCEMENTS. THE TOWN WOULD LIKE TO USE \$100,250 TO REWARD EMPLOYEES WHO WORKED TIRELESSLY DURING THE PANDEMIC. MS. SARRO AND TA FITZGERALD WORKED WITH THE TOWN'S CPA TO MAKE SURE ALL ALLOTMENTS WERE DONE FAIRLY AND LEGALLY. EMPLOYEES WERE PUBLICLY CRITICIZED FOR DECISIONS THEY HAD TO MAKE AND THEIR FAMILIES MADE SACRIFICES. BOTH FIRE & POLICE DEPARTMENT PAYMENTS ALSO INCLUDED FORMER EMPLOYEES. MR. DUFFY STATED THAT HE REACHED OUT TO MS. SARRO TO MAKE SURE THAT THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR WAS ALSO REWARDED.

There was a discussion about rewarding three employees who were no longer employed with the Town at a cost of \$12,000. Ms. Fletcher doesn't think that is fair. Ms. Sarro pointed out that the people on the list were present for a significant portion of the pandemic. They also took into account who could work from home,

WHO HAD A FLEXIBLE SCHEDULE AND COULD COME INTO TOWN HALL WHEN IT WAS QUIETER. THERE WILL NOT BE AN OPPORTUNITY TO COMPENSATE ANY OTHER EMPLOYEES IN THE FUTURE.

Ms. Fletcher stated that she did not want to vote no to the motion because she does not want to say no to current employees but would like to make a motion to amend Mr. Spellios's motion. Mr. Spellios stated that this should be the Town Administrator's decision, that the Town would be lucky to have them back and that this sends a message that all employees will be treated fairly in extraordinary circumstances.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, SECONDED BY KATIE PHELAN, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO AMEND MR. SPELLIOS'S MOTION AND REDUCE THE AMOUNT BY \$12,000, THE AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION SET-ASIDE FOR THREE NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEES: IN FAVOR: MS. FLETCHER, MS. PHELAN. THOSE OPPOSED: MR. GRISHMAN, MR. SPELLIOS, MR. DUFFY. MOTION DENIED.

Upon **Motion**, duly made by Peter Spellios, seconded by David Grishman, it was unanimously **Voted**: To support the authorization of ARPA payments in the amount of \$100,250 to incentivize our municipal workforce and make the Town of Swampscott's compensation more competitive to encourage employee retention. These payments are made to encourage continuity of service for our active employees who worked through the pandemic and remained employed with the Town will receive a one-time supplemental payment. This is to compensate our employees who provide critical governmental services. These services will encourage the provision and continuity of service to the Town of Swampscott starting on March 31, 2021: All in favor Yes. Any opposed No. Motion passes.

C. SELECT BOARD TIME:

Mr. Duffy: Nothing to add.

Ms. Fletcher: Nothing to Add.

Mr. Girshman: Bentwater Brewery will be at the Fish House Saturday from 3:00 – 9:00 with live music, including the Brian Maes, food provided by the Swampscott Yacht Club, and beer from Bentwater. The 50/50 supports the Hadley School PTO.

Ms. Phelan: The Swampscott All Stars are in the finals this weekend. If you have time, please come out and support them.

Mr. Spellios: Nothing to Add.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY KATIE PHELAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO ADJOURN AT 5:55 P.M.: ALL IN FAVOR YES. ANY OPPOSED NO. MOTION PASSES.